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~ "'&!'Ark~ f-rtffi' ~4SIJ,t A - ) Gb': nnight we huvc one 

application on the agenda, ZB2014-32, 554 Queen 

Anne Road, LLC. 

Mr. Capizzi? 
MR. CAPIZZI : Thank you. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: Can you please tell us 

what witnesses you have for tonight that are 
going to testifY? 

MR. CAPIZZI: Sure. We have a total of 
three witnesses as part of the application, two 

of which will be testifYing this evening given 
the fact we have only five members. We don't 

have a full board this evening. We are 
anticipating coming back. So our plan was to 

present testimony fi·om our architect, Larry 
Quirk; president of the congregation, Josh 

Weinberg; and then we'll finish up the 

following hearing with our planner, Joe Burgis. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: Okay. Before we start, 

we have one statement we need to have made by 
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one of our mem hers. 

MR. CAPIZZI : Sure. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Mr. Rosen? 
MR. ROSEN: Yes, I need, for full 

disclosure, I feel it's necessary for me to 

state the fact that when this case was first -
when this applicant tlrst came to this Board 

for approval of its variances three or four 
years ago, as you remember, it went on quite a 

long time. 
Prior to the actual vote, I made some 

rather harsh statements about the applicant, in 

particular, its president. Those remarks were 
carried in the Suburbanite. And subsequent to 

that, the president and I had rather heated 
words in the parking lot a tevv weeks later. 

And I just wanted on the record that those 
circumstances and those events have-- will not 

aiTect my ability to judge this case as it's 

being presented today and in no way will 
prejudice my opinion or my judgment of the 

facts being presented. 
MR. CAPIZZI: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN !·lODGES: Mr. Capizzi , is that 
good with you? 



1 
2 

3 
4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 
13 

14 

15 
16 

17 

18 
19 

20 

21 
22 

23 
24 

25 

l 

2 
3 

4 

5 
6 

7 

8 

9 

10 
II 

12 

13 
14 

15 
16 

17 
IS 

19 

20 

21 

22 
23 

24 
25 

s 

MR. CAPIZZI: That's fine, thank you. 

CIIAII~MAN HODGES: Mr. Ritvo? 
MR. RITVO: That's fine, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: The reason J asked for 
the witnesses ahead of time on who will be 

speaking. we have Larry Quirk, who is your 
architect, and Josh Weinberg? 

MR. CAPIZZI: Weinberg. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Is he the president of 
the organization? 

MR. CAPIZZI: Correct. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Just so to remind the 

members of the Board and also members of the 
public to remember what these witness are 

testirying for. You know, the architect 

shouldn't be asked questions about how the 
organization is going to be run and the 

organization shouldn't be asked about how 

architecturally the building is put together. 
And I'd just like to always get that out 

first, so when you direct your questions to 

come up here, please direct it to the proper 

person. Because we can't ask somebody about 

parking and there's nothing about parking or 
you know whatever the case may be. Okay? 
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take them and use the first floor of what is 

currently used as the rabbi's residence for a 
place to establish youth groups, which will be 

held when services are taking place in the 
sanctuary. 

The rabbi does live there now. He was 
planning to move out. He has a house that was 

under-- being remodeled in town. 

Unfortunately, towards the tail end of the 
remodeling, there was a fire and his time frame 

has been pushed back. But youth groups will 
not take place until he vacates. So this is 
all a proposal. 

It would only be the first lloor of the 
residence. And the architect will discuss how 

we're going to fit out the space to accommodate 

that usc. 
The second portion of the request is 

essentially just to allow some traditional 
daily prayer services in the morning and in the 

evening. The ability to have some additional 

programming, so that we can institute some real 

programming. As it stands now, because of the 
limitation, we can't establish a real program 
f()r men's or women's religious education or 
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MR. CAPIZZI: Thank you. Just lor the 

record, Matthew Capizzi. I I Hillside Avenue, in 

Tenafly, on behalf ol'the applicant, 554 Queen 
Anne Road, congregation Ohr Saadya. 

As the-- as Mr. Rosen had mentioned in 
20 I 0, this site was be tore this Board seeking 

approvals for using the existing structure, a 

portion of it, as a house of worship. lfwe 

split the structure in half, the right portion 

presently functions as the worship space and 
the left portion of the structure is the 

parsonage for the rabbi. 

And we essentially have services on the 

weekends, holidays and high holidays. We have 
occasional programming during the week. 

Presently we're permitted to have programming 

five times a month and a collation, meal after 
services, things of that nature. 

What we're seeking to do this evening is 
essentially-- is to split up the request into 

two halves again. The first portion is the 

worship area. It doesn't have an area for 

children to congregate during services so 

children are disruptive to the services or 
they're playing outside. So we're looking to 

8 

some other type of formal programming. 

And when we have a service on the weekend, 
we'd like to have the ability to have a portion 

of our meal take place outside, if the weather 
permits. 

And lastly we just like to have some small 
signage, to be determined, on the property that 

would be in compliance with the municipal -
with the township code. 

And that's our proposal in a nutshell. 
We'll have Larry Quirk talk about the 
architectural modificntions. which are strictly 
internal as as l'ar as the lit-out lor the youth 
group space. We'll have Josh Weinberg talking 
about the l'unctionality ol'the daily services, 
the youth group program and so on. And then 
Joe Burgis will lake us through the planning 
testimony. 

CHAIRMAN !·lODGES: We need to acknowledge 
that we have two planning board members. One 

is Kimberly .Iones. who is sitting to my right. 

and we're wailing lor Mr. Thompson. who will be 

coming in. should be here shortly. He will be 
sitting over here to my left. 

MR. CAPIZZI: Thank you . I appreci ate you 
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helping us out here tonight. 

MS. JONES: No problem. My pleasure. 

MR. CAPIZZI: So if the Board has no 

procedural questions, I'll start with 

Mr. Quirk. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Mr. Ritvo, we have any 

procedural things to go over? 

MR. RITVO: No, I don't think so, 

Mr.-Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Okay. 

MR. RITVO: Mr. Quirk has been qualified 

before this Board as an expert architect on 

many occasions. Therefore, unless there's any 

objection, I would recommend Mr. Quirk as an 

expert in architecture, Mr.-Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Seeing no opposition. 

Mr. Melfi? 

MR. MELFI: Why don't you swear him in 

first? 

MR. CAPIZZI: I'll have him identifY the 

plan for the record. 

MR. MELFI: That's all I want. 

LARRY Q U IRK, 

called as a wi tress, having first been 

duly swom, was examined and testified as 

II 

authorized representatives of the orthodox 

congregation in terms of Teaneck. 

Members have recused themselves for their 

own personal reasons. Pursuant to statute, 

planning board members may then sit on this 

Board and that's as far as you should go. I 

wouldn't get into any further explanation of 

who's who. The Board members are the Board 

members. They don't sit representing any 

group. They sit and represent the township, 

every one of them. So I wouldn't answer that 

question. 

MR. CAM PEAS: Did they say why they 

recused themselves? 

MR. RITYO: They felt they had a conflict. 

That's it. That's enough in the statute's 

indications. 

MR. CAMPEAS: So is this a representative 

group or the usuol l3onrd of Adj uslment? 

MR. RITVO: I don't understand that 

question, Mr. Chairman. I don't know if you 

do'1 

CHAIRMAN I-lODGES: I don't understnnd. 

I'll put it this way. On other occnsions. 

we have done this. This is the procedure that 
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follaNS: 

MR. MELFI: I b~:lieve Mr. Capizzi is going 

lo verify--just confirm the date on the 

plans. 

MR. CAPIZZI: I know you have some plans 

mounted. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Could you hold it for 

just one second . .lust a procedural question? 

MR. CAMPEAS: RifCampeas, neighbor, 

258 Griggs Avenue. 

Could you explain why we have planning 

board members here? 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: The reason we have 

planning board members is thnt some of the 

members of the Board of Adjustment have recused 

themselves. A lot of the members on the Board 

of Adjustment belong to ditlerent synagogues 

that might intertwine with other synagogues. 

And for whatever reason, they felt to be 

honest, they recused themselves from this 

application. 

MR. CAM PEAS: So there are no 

representatives from the orthodox citizens of 

Teaneck here? 

MR. RITVO: Mr. Chairman, there are no 

12 

we follow. 

MR. RITVO: And permilled by the statutes. 

If there's not enough members for a quorum, the 

statute allows planning board members to come 

and sit in the place of Board of Adjustment 

members. 

MR. CAM PEAS: And is it unusual to have 

all members who are orthodox recuse themselves 

at once? 

MR. RITVO: Unusua]'l I don't know if 

that's true. 

MR. C/\MI'EAS: lias it occurred before'/ 

MR. CAPIZZI: We don't know the basis they 

were recused. 1 beli..:vc that was staled. 

MR. C/\MI'E/\S: I didn't ask the basis. 

THE BOARD SECRET/\RY: Hold on one second. 

One person at a time. We nc..:cl a transcript. 

So if he asks you a question. give him a chance 

to ask it . 

Cl-1/\IRM/\N I-lODGES: .lust to make it clear, 

the people that recuse themselves arc not just 

orthoclo:x. I have one member of the Board who 

was sick today in bed . So obviously she 

couldn't come. 

I have one member thnt's in France. 
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Obviously she couldn't come. So the members. 

when they choose to recuse themselves by law. 

and we trust that our members follow the lnw 

the way they're supposed to, if anything that 

they tee! any prejudice towards, they recuse 

themselves. That's just what-- they don't 

have to give a reason, they just say they need 

lo recuse themselves, nothing else. 

MR. CAMPEAS: Okay. 

THE COURT REPORTER: The spelling of your 

name? 

a--

MR. CAMPEAS: R-1-F, C-A-M-P-E-A-S. 

CHAIRMAN I-lODGES: Yes, sir? 

MR. HARRIS: I'm Joe Harris, Teaneck. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Spell your last name? 

MR. HARRIS: H-A-R-R-1-S. 

So maybe this is out of order, but it's 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: If it is, I'll tell you. 

MR. HARRIS: All right. So I've seen five 

members up here of whom two are not Board 

members. And you need five people. Is that 

the minimum? 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Five is the minimum. 

MR. HARRIS: And if this meeting goes on 

15 
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MR. HARRIS: So therefore there are two 

people who are out sick or sick and away. And 

so--

CHAIRMAN HODGES: One person is on the 

way. 

MR. HARRIS: That would bring it up to 

seven? 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Yes. 

MR. HARRIS: I see. Thank you very much. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Mr. Capi7J.i'? 

MR. CAPIZZI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

Mr. Quirk? 

TI IE COURT REPORTER: Please state and 

14 spell your name. 

15 THE WITNESS: My name is Larry Quirk. 

16 Q-U-1-R-K. 

17 EXAMINATIGI BY 

1 8 MR. CAPIZZI: 

19 Q. Can you just identi1y the plans that arc 

20 mounted by page number'? 

2 I A. Yes, I 1irst want to point out the first 

22 sheet, which is A-1, thnl is the site plan. II has 

23 a zoning legend, building coverage and parking 

24 calculations. 

25 JJ"I may, I first want to discuss the lot 
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lor two meetings. who would vote at the second 

meeting. 

CHAIRMAN I-lODGES: Any lime we have a 

shortngc of members, like today, we only have 

five. other members that can hear this case can 

read the transcript and then join in on next 

meeting so long as they read or hear the tapes. 

So they sign that they've read it, they 

understand it, and they're now allowed to come 

in and vote. 

MR. HARRIS: And the people who have sat 

here tonight who are not members of the Board 

thereby lose their votes on at that --

CHAIRMAN I-lODGES: Oh, no. These people 

vote. There's not going to be five other 

people come in and take somebody's place here. 

These people hear it. 

The reason, 1 ike I said, the one person 

that's sick in bed, it happens to all of us 

sometime. 

MR. HARRIS: I'm not blaming anybody. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: She'll read the 

transcript or listen to the tape, whatever is 

available, and the next time she will be here 

to vote. 
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1 itself. It's a 14,300-square-foot lot. On it is 

2 a -- what to everybody looks like a residential 

3 building, which it is. It's a classic Teaneck 

4 building, brick veneer, slate roof and wood siding. 

5 As Mr. Capizzi mentioned before, the right 

6 side is currently used as a house of worship. And 

7 the left-hand side is used as a residence. 

8 I want to now point out a few things on 

9 the lirst floor and how the first floor is laid out. 

10 There's an entrance lo the house or worship on the 

11 right-hand side here, and there's basically a main 

12 entranc~ lo the hous~ of worship in the rear. orr 
13 or Van Buren is a foyer, a coat closet, a bathroom 

14 that ar~ going lo receive minor modifications to 

15 muke it handicapped-accessible, and there are 

16 entrance doors into the sanctuary. 

17 Adjacent to the sanctuary at the 1ront or 

18 the building is u common space used as parlofthe 

19 sanctuary usc . 

20 The k:ll-hand side is all residential. On 

21 the first floor. there's a royer. small powder room , 

22 kitchen. dining room. living room and a den. 

23 Upslnirs there arc three bedrooms on the second 

24 Jloor. and then there's an attic. There's also two 

25 bathrooms on the second lloor. 
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I Before I describe the lirst lloor, I just 

2 want to point out that the entire second floor and 

3 the attic will not be accessible from the first 

4 floor other than through a locked door. The same 

5 with the basement. The basement will be locked ofT 

6 on the first floor. The reason being, the basement 

7 is not code-compliant. The heights ofthe ceiling 

8 arc well below 7 feet. It's more like a cellar than 

9 it is a basement. And the second floor, there would 

10 have to be too many modifications to make it usable 

II by the-- as part of the synagogue. So the services 

12 and the youth groups are all on the first floor. 

13 We're going to take each room, each room 

14 on the first floor, the living room, convert it into 

15 two group rooms. The dining room is a one-group 

16 room, and the den will be one room. 

17 Q. If you can just reference the plan to the 

18 areas you're speaking of? 

19 A. Yes. This right now is a very long living 

20 room. It's close to 32 feet in length. We're going 

21 to subdivide the two groups. We have a small den 

22 that's one group. The dining room is about 20 feet 

23 in length. That will also be another group. 

24 Towards the front of the building next to 

25 the dining room is a kitchen. That kitchen will be 
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renovated and altered to accommodate a new bathroom 

with-- because of all of the people using this 

raci I ity, I need at least three toilets. 

So this is your third toilet. I have a 

powder room in the front and I also have a 

handicapped bathroom o!Tthe foyer in the back. 

Q. As far as the appliances in the kitchen? 

A. Appliances in the kitchen, just a sink, 

cabinets, counters, no cooking. 

Q. The oven is being removed? 

A. Yes. 

MS. JONES: I'm sorry. You said no 

cooking? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

BY MR. CAPIZZI: 

Q. As far as the seating that you're 

proposing for the children, is it movable? 

A. Yeah, these are not fixed tables or fixed 

chairs. They're movable in each room. There will 

be floor mats in the den to accommodate for younger 

children. 

Q. And the separation between the various 

groupings, is that accomplished through partition 

walls? 

A. Yes. And doors. There's a folding 

19 20 
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I partition between these two groups. Though this is 

2 open because I need access to the side door for 

3 emergency egress. This dining room is just one 

4 large room and so the only large room that's being 

5 subdivided right now is the living room into two 

6 groups. 

7 Q. So with respect to the overall 

8 rehabilitation of the space is essentially just 

9 focused upon the kitchen and bathroom areas? 

10 A. Correct, correct. The living room 

II basically is the same as it is other than the 

12 folding wall. The den is basically staying as is 

13 and the dining room is staying as is. 

14 Q. With the exception ofthe site 

I 5 improvements associated with the driveway, is there 

16 any outward change to the building'l 

17 A. No, there isn't. 

18 Q. So what you're doing in terms of with the 

19 kitchen is to create the bathroom. Will there be 

20 any visibility--

21 A. No. The ii·ont window is staying as is. 

22 Virtually as you see the building today, if this is 

23 approved and it goes forward. it's going to look the 

24 same when it's built. 

25 Q. As far as closing otT the second floor and 

I basement areas, how is that being accomplished? 

2 A. Right now, when you walk into the foyer, 

3 the stair leading up to the second floor is open. 

4 We're going to enclose that with a wall and a door. 

5 Right now, the -- and then the access to 

6 the basement is by two means. Through what is now 

7 the kitchen, there's a door separating from the 

8 kitchen to the basement stair, and there's also one 

9 from the back foyer. Those two doors leading to the 

10 basement will be locked. 

II Those rooms-- there's-- I believe it's 

12 the engineer or somebody in the town that questioned 

13 what are the storage rooms going to be used for. 

14 Storage lfthey have-- if they need a space to 

15 put things. they'll put there. 

16 Q. But as far as being associated with the 

17 youth groups, there will be no access? 

18 A. No. 

19 MR. CAPIZZI: Thank you. I have nothing 

20 further lor Mr. Quirk. 

21 CHAIRMAN HODGES: Any questions by members 
22 of the Board') 

23 Mr. Melfi'? 

24 MR. MELFI: Two questions. 

25 Can you conlirm the date of the plans'l 
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TilE WITNESS: Yes. May 5. 2014. 

MR. MELrt: The plan that we did the 

review on was dated April I, 2014. Is there a 

big difference between the two plans? 

MR. CAPIZZI: Your letter ofdcnial is 

based on the May 5th plan. 

MR. MELFI: And the one back room going 

in, I guess, facing Teaneck Road is not 

labeled? 

THE WITNESS: Facing Teaneck Road? 

THE BOARD SECRETARY: Queen Anne. 

MR. CAPIZZI: Queen Anne. That's the 

warming kitchen. 

THE WITNESS: The sanctuary common area. 

MR. MELFI: That's going to be just a 

common area. 

THE WITNESS: Just a common space. 

MR. MELFI: Nothing else? 

THE WITNESS: No. 

MR. CAPIZZI: That's existing. 

MS. JONES: I have a question. 

Hi, good afternoon. You had just 

mentioned about the-- what -- so the basement 

and so the second and third floor, you said 

that they're not going to be accessible from 

23 
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I yourself to the Board and tell them your affiliation 

2 to the applicant? 

3 A. Sure. My name is Josh Weinberg. 

4 CHAIRMAN HODGES: Can you spell your last 

5 name? 
6 THE WITNESS: Sure. W-E-1-N-B-E-R-G. 

7 A. I'm a resident of Teaneck. I've been a 

8 member for just about 2-1/2 years now and president 

9 of the Board for the last approximately six months. 

l 0 And I am familiar with the clay-to-day operations of 

I I the synagogue. 

12 Q. Can you give the Board, just for the 

13 benefit of the planning board members who weren't 

14 present during the 2010 application. just a brief 

15 synopsis about the congregation and how it functions 

I 6 on a day-to-day basis'l 

17 A. Sure . So we currently have approximately 

18 75 member families nl'which 10 ofthem arc associate 

19 members. 
20 An associate member is one who has ltlll 

2 I membership in other synagogue but feels some sort ol' 

22 connection with our synagogue and wants to be a part 

23 of it. They don't necessarily all come to services. 

24 you know, every week. 

25 We hold services. <ls Mr. Capizzi 
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the first floor. The only way that they're not 

accessible, you said there's a door--

TI IE WITNESS: What 1 meant is for the 

children to get access to those spaces. 

They're not going to be running up and clown the 

stairs. During the services, they will be 

locked. 

MS. JONES: Okay, thank you. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Any other questions from 

members of the Board? 

Hearing no questions, any questions from 

members of the public? 

Seeing none. 

MR. MELFI: I want to confirm I do have 

the May 5th plans. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: No questions, we'll move 

17 on. 

18 

19 JOSH 

MR. CAPIZZI: Thank you. 

WE IN BERG, 

20 

21 

22 

called as a witress, having first been 

duly s"--m, was examined ard testified as 

follONS: 

23 EXAMINATICN BY 

24 MR. CAPIZZI: 

25 Q. Mr. Weinberg, can you just introduce 
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I mentioned, on the Sabbath and on major Jewish 

2 holidays. And we also, on occasion, given what 

3 we're allowed to from the previous proceedings, we 

4 are allowed to do live events a month. And we do 

5 various adult programming and children's programming 

6 as well every once in a while. 

7 Q. Do you also have some life cycle events, 

8 bar mitzvah. Bris? 

9 A Yeah, every once in a while, just a few of 

I 0 them over the past few years, we've had a couple of 

II l3riscs, which are circumcisions, and we've had a few 

12 bar/bat mitzvahs that occurred during services on 

13 the weekends. 

14 Q. Right now. one of the issues I had talked 

15 about in my opening was children during services. 

16 Can you explain some of the clifficulties you're 

17 having there'l 
Jg A. Sure. Right now it's kind or a bit 

1lJ disorderly. We don't have room li.>r a youth group 

20 and so the kids are sort or-- can somewhat be a 

21 distraction in the services and it cnn get a little 

22 difficult. And so we would like to have a space for 

23 youth to congregate and to provide some sort of 

24 structured activities lor them during the services. 

25 Q. Great. If you could utili7.e the plan 
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I Mr. Quirk huson the easel there. 
2 If you could just explain to us how you 
3 anticipate this area to function as lar as when it 
4 would start, when it would conclude, how children 
5 would arrive, things of that nature? 
6 A Sure. So right now, services begin at 
7 about 9:00a.m. in the morning and the members sort 

8 of file in as the service goes aheud. So not 

9 everyone is there at 9:00a.m. As the service 

10 proceeds, more people show up. And so too they 
II bring their children with them. 

12 We would like to-- there are three main 
13 rooms here, as Mr. Quirk explained, and we would try 

14 to have based on sort of the makeup of the kids that 

15 are there that week, we would envision having youth 
16 groups for kids ages four to ten and we'd break them 

17 up into-- as you see here, three different age 
18 groups. The activities will be age-appropriate. 
19 They will include Bible studies, some prayer, but 
20 it's a way to sort of give a flavor of the hoi iday 
21 or the Sabbath to the children in an age-appropriate 
22 manner and to keep them occupied and entertained 

23 during the services. 
24 They will be led --so we did a survey--

25 firstly just want to say this is something that many 

27 
WEINBERG- 12/18114 

I orthodox Jews, we try to pray three times a day, 
2 preferably with a quorum, if we can, and that's what 

3 we'd like to institute at the synagogue. Morning 
4 prayers we would envision starting about 7:00a.m. 

5 and they last on average about 45 minutes. For the 
6 afternoon/evening prayers, they're usually-- you 

7 can sort of do them combined so that will take place 

8 in the evening around sundown for approximately 

9 20 minutes. 
I 0 Just to be clear, in the wintertime. when 
1 I sundown is very early. it's dillicult to get that 

I 2 quorum so early, we would split up the prayers and 
13 probably not hold an aflernoon service and hold an 
I 4 evening service later on in the evening. let's say. 

15 at 7:45, approximutely thnt time. 

16 Q. And the evening service later on. again. 
17 will be potentially 20 minutes--

18 A. It will be about haiC I 0. 15 minutes. 
19 yes. 

20 Q. And as lar as the altendance level li.)r the 
21 morning and evening services? 

22 A So we would expect approximately 15 lo 20 

23 people on average. 
24 Q Given that there are the restrictions ihat 
25 we would seck during our weekend service with an 

26 
WEINBERG- 12/18114 

I congregations do oiler to their members. It's 
2 commonplace in many synagogues. And it's something 
3 we would like to have at our synagogue, as well. 
4 We did a survey of the local synagogues 

5 that do offer these services and they are led by 
6 local teenagers. So we would try to do the same. 

7 And we --the teenagers would be overseen by youth 

8 committee adults of the members of the congregation. 
9 And if there's ever an issue, there will be 
10 representatives of that youth committee at every 
II service, sort of on call as it were, to step into 

12 should there be issue, should it require any further 

13 supervision, they're all, you know, given the 
14 accessibility to each in the sanctuary, there will 
15 be adults who could step in should that be 

16 necessary. 

17 But like I said, this is something that is 
18 done at many congregations in Teaneck and throughout 

19 the country and the world and that's generally how 
20 they're led. 

21 Q. Part of our proposal deals with daily 
22 services. If you could explain to the Board when 

23 that would occur, in the morning, in the evening and 
24 what you're anticipated attendance level will be? 
25 A Sure. So as orthodox synagogue, or 
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I orthodox congregation, the traveling to and from the 

2 site, how would that work? 

3 A During the week? 
4 Q. The daily services? 

5 A. Well, so a large -- given that we are an 
6 orthodox synagogue and many of our members do not 
7 drive on the Sabbath and holidays, most of our 

8 membership live within a close distance of the 
9 synagogue. I would say 50 percent within a third of 

I 0 a mile, 90 percent within a half a mile to a mile, 
II so it's very close. 
12 So a lot of people, I believe, would end 

13 up walking since it's almost easier to walk than 
14 just to actually get into their car. 

15 For those that do drive, there is, you 

16 know. very ample street parking in the area lor that 
17 
18 

45 minutes. you know, that it would take. 

Q. Have you had the occasion to actually 
19 study some of' the surrounding blocks to see what the 
20 availability is'? 

2 I A. Yes. So I did a survey around the area 

22 multiple times on multiple dates and, you know, 

23 we-- l don't have a drawing here. but if you look 

24 at the sort of the like an extended one-block 
25 radius, you know. from Griggs between Palmer and 
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I Mildred and then Van Buren between Palmer and 

2 Mildred and Herrick between Palmer and Mildred. 

3 you'll lind that there are approximately 200-plus 

4 spaces available for parking, of which 1 --on those 

5 verifications that I did in a couple of times in the 

6 mornings and a few times in the afternoon. there was 

7 never really more than 60 cars parked in that space. 

8 So there's an abundance of parking in the space. 

9 With respect to commuters, the streets of 

10 Griggs and Herrick west of Queen Anne is actually 

II restricted for commuters between -- three-hour 

12 parking, I believe, after 9:00a.m. So parking in 

13 that area would not have any effect on the 

14 commuters -- on commuter traftic. 

15 .I ust to also say, the area actually right 

16 in front of the synagogue on Van Buren and directly 

17 across has, you know, approximately six to eight 

18 parking spots, depending on when you park there. 

19 So between the parking that we are showing 

20 on our plans, which is six spaces in addition to the 

21 six to-- the six-plus spaces we have really right 

22 in ti·ont of the synagogue, that should accommodate 

23 just about everybody who would attend, who we would 

24 expect to attend the weekday services who would not 

25 walk. So it's really-- we don't see parking as an 
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I potentially having a class on a Sunday and 

2 potentially two during the week? 

3 A. Yes, exactly. 

4 Q. So as far as the programming, the time 

5 periods you anticipate holding these programs and 

6 the attendance level? 

7 A. So for the adult education classes, it 

8 looks like it will be in the evenings. 7:00ish. 

9 Attendance levels, I would think, would be light. 

I 0 Probably also in the I 0- to 20-person range. 

II for youth progrnmming, it kind of depends 

12 on, 1 guess, who is available. But it would have 

13 potentially 50 children, around that. So simil~r to 

14 what we would get during a Sabbath youth group. 

15 Q. And all these activities we're talking 

16 about. whether it's adult education class or a child 

17 study class, this is all occurring within the 

18 worship area. correct? 

19 A. Correct. 

20 Q. So it's all in the sanctuary space? 

21 A. Yes. 

22 Q. Great. Talking about the weekend 

23 services. l know that we had-- there was a desin: 

24 potentially-- right now we have a Kiddush --to 

25 potentially take that outside u few times a year') 
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1 issue. 

2 Q. One of the other issues that we have been 

3 talking about as far as preparing the areas is the 

4 inability to really eflectuate some planned 

5 programming. I know we are allowed to meet tive 

6 times a month, but we're proposing to increase that. 

7 Can you talk about the programming that 

8 we're anticipating having? And initially some of 

9 the difficulties we have as well as how we hope the 

10 increase will solve that issue? 

11 A. Sure. So really we would like to be able 

12 to institute some adult education classes, Bible 

13 study and lectures of those kind of sorts. 

14 Given that there are -- a limitation on 

15 five a month, it's kind of difficult to really 

16 institute a schedule, given that, you know, 

17 sometimes we would also have some youth programs 

18 around the holidays. So, you know, having some 

19 events at some point is kind of-- is difficult to 

20 really institute, you know, a schedule. So we are 

21 looking to expand that to three events a week, which 

22 would allow us to hold the adult education classes 

23 we would like, as well as youth programming, when 

24 available. 

25 Q. So that three week-- that would include 
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I A. Yeah, when the weather is nice, it would 

2 be nice to be able to have this after-prayer 

3 collation outside. It's always nicer to be in the 

4 sun and it would go back to the time issue to be 

5 able to do that. 
6 Q. So the Kiddush, whether it's inside or 

7 outside, we're talking about generally the same 

8 duration. the same attendance level? 

9 A. Yeah. It's attended by those who come for 

I 0 services. The duration right now, we're doing it 

11 under an hour. So I don't think we will change that 

12 drastically. 

13 Q. Was there also a desire to potentially 

14 have a tent, depending on whether it's necessary--

15 the sun. the shade. to be able to erect a tent to 

16 accommodate that Kiddush? 

17 A. Sure. IC you know, in addition to the 

18 Kiddush we were talking about with doing sort of 

19 outside events, whether it's the Kiddush or life 

20 cycle events, you know, it can be certainly 

21 enhanced. both aesthetically and to the weather, a 

22 tent. so we would like the option to, you know, to 

23 have a tent. Obviously. go along with any 

24 requirements that the Teaneck building department 

25 has, we would certainly deal with the building 
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I department on that. 
2 Q. And the last item. part of our proposaL 
3 was signage, which is essentially selt~explanatory. 

4 We don't have any proposed signage to date, but just 
5 to have signagc, that would be in compliance with 

6 the township code? 
7 A. Yeah, exactly. And I can tell you on a 

8 few occasions, I've walked to synagogue in the 

9 morning and there's a visitor or whoever who knows 
I 0 that there's a synagogue in the area, really can't 

II find it, it's actually happened this past weekend, 
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12 and, you know, it would be nice to have a signjust 12 

13 so people know where we are and can find the 13 

14 synagogue. 14 
15 MR. CAPIZZI: Thank you. 15 
16 CHAIRMAN !·lODGES: Few questions. You said 16 
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there's 75 families. How do you break the 

75 families down into adults, youth? 
THE WITNESS: How many children are there? 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: How many members? 

THE WITNESS: Oh, 1 don't have an exact 

count of total children. I can say, you know, 

within the ages of four and ten, I believe of 

those 65 full members we're looking at 
approximately 70, 75 children of youth group 
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or in total? 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: The whole thing, total. 

l want to know how many adults are there. I'd 

like to know how many youth are there. I want 
to know how many 4 to 10. I'd like to know how 
many l 0 to 15 or 16 to 18. Whatever way you'd 

like to break it down. 

But I'd like to say-- I want to picture 

in my head am J talking about a synagogue that 
has a possible 500 membership? Right now it's 

75 families , l don't know. Because. I mean, I 

can go around places in Teaneck and look at 
some or the houses in Teane~.:k and one family 

lives in the house. you see 25 people coming 
out. So !mean. I'm just-- l want to have a 

full picllire. 
MR. CAPIZZI: Sure . If you could tell us 

on Saturday. what's the occupancy level with 
parents and children. what arc we looking at? 

·1 HE WITN ESS: Sure. So at the beginning 

of the service. usually there are 

approximately-- I would say Jbr the majority 

of the service. there arc about . you know, 40 
to 50 adults and 30 children. By the end. you 

know. as we get closer to Kiddush. really by 
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CHAIRMAN HODGES: four to ten? 

THE WITNESS : Yes. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: And how about above ten? 

You're counting as an adult? 
THE WITNESS : I'm sorry? 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: Above ten, you're 

counting as an adult? 

THE WITNESS: No, I'm not. Above ten, I 
don't know offi1and. I can estimate if you'd 

like. But it's not that many. We're a very 

young congregation so it's really a handful--

MR. ROSEN: You're a very what 

congregation? 
THE WITNESS: A very young congregation so 

most of the children are younger than that. 

There are a few. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: So when you come back 

next time, can you bring the numbers of the 

membership? 

THE WITNESS : Sure. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES : We want to see exactly 

how many people you're talking about. 
THE WITNESS: Sure. 
MR. CAPIZZI: Within the youth group space 
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the end, women will come to children who are 

not there already, it could go between, let's 
say, 60 to 80 adults and about 50 kids, 50, 60 

kids. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: Okay. We can come back 

next week. 

THE WITNESS: Sure. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: Oh, wait. Here's 

another question. 
from 2010, since the last time ofthis 

application took place, to now, what's the 

difference in membership? 
THE WITNESS: I apologize. I don't have 

the exact membership. I believe the membership 
number was 35, so we've grown to about 65. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: I'm sorry? 

THE WITN ESS : We went ti·om 35 to 65. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: Thirty-five families? 

TI-lE WITN ESS : Yes, 35 families to 65 

families. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: In four years? 

THE WITNESS: Four years, yes. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: So an estimate would be 

you grew tive l ~unilies a year? 
THE WITN ESS: Approximately, yes. 
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I just want to point out that not all I 

members attend every week. It's not-- not 2 
everybody f(JIIows it. So there are many 3 

families who either for whntever renson don't 4 
come who are members because they feel like 5 

some sort of association to the synagogue, but 6 
don't actually live in the area. so just wanted 7 

to put that out there. 8 
CHAIRMAN IIODGES: Well, I'm just trying to 9 

get a total picture. That's why I'm just I 0 

trying to figure this out. II 

So as far as now you're talking about 12 

you'd like to have services three times a week? 13 
THE WITNESS: We'd like to have 14 

services -- 15 
CHAIRMAN I-lODGES: Sorry, not services. 16 

I'm sorry. You'd I ike to be able to have 17 

groups, educational, whatever, three times a 18 

week; is that correct? 19 
THE WITNESS: You're referring to like the 20 

events? So we'd like to be able to hold -- 21 

yeah, events three times a week, yes. 22 

CHAIRMAN I-lODGES: That includes education? 23 
THE WITNESS: Like ndult education classes 24 

or any sort of youth programming that usually 25 
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did a survey of how many parking spaces were 

taken up, how many cars were parked on the 

street at certain intervals of time. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: Well then, okay. I 

mean, correct me if I'm wrong. But I thought 
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occurs mound the major holidays. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: And you're estimating 

that these will have-- if! wrote this down 

right, 10 to 20 people at each event? 
THE WITNESS: Yeah, probably. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: So out of these 10 or 20 

people, we're talking about I 0 to 20 cars wi II 

arrive there or talking about--
THE WITNESS: No, I don't think so. So as 

I said, most of the congregation lives really 

close and it's probably more of a pain to get 

in a car for a bunch of them than it is to just 

walk. 
So I would probably estimate for something 

like that, you know, if we had 20 people come, 
I would say 10-- 10 to 15 cars. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: You testified also that 
you had-- you did a survey of the neighborhood 

for how many parking spaces there were? 

THE W1TNESS: Yes. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: And you felt there were 

200 spaces? 
THE WITNESS: I didn't do the survey in 

terms of the available parking spaces. That 

was --you can defer that to the planner. I 
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I don't want to get any confusion like we got 

the last time. 
We had this application and I know you're 

being a nice guy and !just want to make 

sure-- but if we could just have him just 
please testifY to what he knows and this way you testified that there were 200 available 

parking spaces but only 60 people-- 60 cars 

parked there? 

7 we're not having any, you know-- all right. 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: Wasn't that your 

testimony. 
THE WITNESS: Yeah. that was a number that 

was given to me fi·Otn the planner. So I got 
that number-- app1 oxinwte number. 

MR. CAPIZZI: This is-- he had a 
conversation with the-- so he counted the 

number of cars thnt were parked on the street. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: All right. Can we have 

just the things that you know. not what 
somebody else told you'l 

THE WITNESS: Absolutely. Sorry. 
CHAIRMAN I-lODGES: So what else is there? 

I mean. I don't want to be asking you questions 

on-- thinking that you-- it sounded like you 
checked the neighborhood out nnd you snid 200. 

8 So exactly, you don't know exactly how 

9 many parking spaces are in the area? 

10 THE WITNESS : Correct. 
II MR. CAPIZZI: Can I ask--

12 BY MR. CAPIZZI: 
13 Q. Can you tell us how many cars were parked 

14 on the street'l That's simple-- that you could tell 

15 us. correct? 
16 A. Sure. So on average during the times that 
17 I looked around, there were approximately 60 cars. 

18 At most. 60 to 65 cars that I saw. 
19 MR. MULLIGAN: How many dinerent times 

20 
21 

22 
23 
24 
25 

did you make thi s count? You are talking about 
an average. Did you do this four days and the 

average of four days was, or just a couple of 

times? 
THE WITNESS : 11 was like four days. two 

ditlerent times in the morning. 7:30a.m., 
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8:30a.m. There wns also in the evenings, I 
believe it was 6:00 and 7:00. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Okay. So I can-- hold 

on. Let me get a point. Exactly what blocks 
did you go on'~ 

THE WITNESS: So 1looked on Griggs 
between Pnlmcr and Mildred; on Van Buren 

between--

CHAIRMAN HODGES: I'm just trying to --I 

need to keep my record straight. Griggs 

between Palmer and Mildred. 
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THE WITNESS: On Van Buren between Palmer 12 
and Mildred; on Herrick between Palmer and 13 

Mildred; on Palmer between Herrick and Griggs; 14 

and Mildred between Herrick and Griggs. It's 15 
like a one-block sort of extended radius around 16 

the shu!. 17 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Okay. And when you saw 18 
60 to 65 cars, what percentage of the parking 19 

spaces were open, half of them? 20 

MR. CAPIZZI : lfyou can answer. 21 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: If you don't know, I'm 22 

not putting words in your mouth. 
THE WITNESS: What I can say is the block 

looked empty. That's -- I don't have -- I 
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be heading west like right in front of your 
building going down Van Buren. 

That's fairly well parked up every 
morning, and I go by there between 7:00 and 

7:20, four out of five days. There are a lot 
of cars parked there. And in the evening there 

are probably more cars parked there. 

THE WITNESS: So I'm--

MR. MULLIGAN: I guess the point l'm 
thinking ot; being familiar with the area, 

extra cars-- like I know it with other houses 
ofwmship, there are trallic problems with it. 
And I can see there being a tra!lic problem 
because there's no parking allowed on Queen 
Anne Roud at all. And I know maybe there's no 

parking allowed and like there's no pnrking in 

a handicapped spot without the handicapped 
thing. but there are still people that do it. 

And I'm concerned that we have a commuter 

bus tlwt goes by on a regular basis. we have 
school buses. and they're going to go around 

the hlo~.:k on a weekday and they're not going to 

sec a space and they're going to just park 
their car. 

Would you be willing to possibly head 
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didn't-- like I said, I didn't do--

CHAIRMAN HODGES: I know you're not an 

expert. I'm not trying to make you an expert. 
I'm just trying to get a feeling of exactly 

what we have and what we don't have, okay. 
And you did this four times, four 

different days, 6:00 in the morning--

THE WITNESS: 7:30a.m., 8:30a.m., 6:00 

in the evening and 7:00 in the evening. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Okay. 
MR. MULLIGAN: Question. You talked about 

the parking. I'm extremely familiar with that 

area. There's a commuter bus during the 

morning. It's --
(Mr. Thompson nrrives at 7:52 p.m.) 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Hold on one second. I 

just want to let the record reflect that 
Mr. Thompson is here. 

MR. THOMPSON: Yes. 

MR. MULLIGAN: There's a commuter bus that 
goes there on a regular basis. There's people 

there, there's school buses during the day. 

There seems to be a lot of parking, whether 

it's allowed or not allowed, leading up to 
Queen Anne. So from Queen Anne, I guess would 
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something that there's actually no parking in 

front -- like your congregation is aware 
because we've done this with other houses of 

worship. 
THE WITNESS: But there's no parking-

MR. MULLIGAN: Don't think about parking 
on Queen Anne Road. 

THE WITNESS: On Queen Anne Road? 
MR. MULLIGAN: I know it says it's not 

allowed but--
THE WITNESS: I can certainly relay that. 

MR. CAPIZZI: We have no issue with a 

street stipulation. 

MR. MULLIGAN: I understand. But we have 
done thi s with others because we've had a lot 
of negative feedback . 

TI-lE WITNESS: I don't think I've actually 

ever seen someone park on Queen Anne around our 
synagogue. 

MR. MULLIGAN: Well , I've lived in this 

town long enough. If they could park in a 
tree, they would. 

THE WITNESS : Like I said, the area around 
from what I can see looks empty. So I 
shouldn't think that there's any iss ues of 
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parking around th~ imm~diatc nrea, so I don't 

see why they would necessarily need to park on 

Queen Anne. But that's certainly something we 

can tnke leave to and tell the congregation. 

MR. MULLIGAN: One more thing. If there 

was enough negative feedback ti·om residents-

because we've been down this path betore -

would it be possible ll.1r you guys to have a 

traftic study done? In other words, have 

somebody do a count, if everybody would be 

willing to accept? 

MR. CAPIZZI: That's something we can take 

into consideration. 

MR. MULLIGAN: If it gets to the point 

where there's enough negative feedback from the 

residents and there's questions about how much 

parking there isn't, if we had some neutral 

detached third party that came up with a survey 

we would all rise or fall by it. 

MR. CAPIZZI: Well, I would imagine the 

npplicant would retain such professionnl. So 

it wouldn't be completely neutral initially, 

but we can consider having such a--

MR. MULLIGAN: lfwe have a traffic 

professional do it, we might not like the 
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considering. 

MR. ROSEN: Just for the record, I would 

guess that most of the children in your 

community are going to day schools? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

MR. ROSEN: So there arc no plans for any 

allcrnoon structures. no school buses pulling 

up. none ol'thnt'! 

TilE WITNESS: Absolutely. 

MR. ROSEN: In light ol'the tact that the 

last lime your synagogue was before this Board 

there wns quite n contentious, to be lair, 

contentious npplication, and the neighbors 

CXJliCSSL:d a lot or C<lllC<.:rns. And I believe 

that one of stipulations that we made wns 

that -- nnd most houses or worship. you have n 

contact person . How did that work out? 

THE WITNESS: So thnt's line . We do have 

a liaison. thl!ir inlhnnation has been listed on 

the website and I beli..:ve at some point it was 

communicated to the neighbors. So it's working 

out. I bel ievc he has gotten a few calls. 

but .. . 
MR. ROSEN: Thut's the next-- I imagine 

before your tenure as president. you were 
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nnswer to both worlds. but --

MR. CAPIZZI: Understood. 

MR. ROSEN: Mr. Weinberg. could you 

speculate nbout the growth of your synagogue in 

future yenrs? Do you think that you've maxed 

out at 75 or do you think that you will 

continue to grow, given the demographics of the 

community and what your synagogue has to offer? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. So we're not actively 

seeking expansion, but people do join the 

community and do allend our synagogue. 

The last few years, we have been seeing 

these five families a year move in, so I would 

say that that's something that could very well 

continue. 

MR. ROSEN: Is there a point at which you 

would have to begin to hold another service on 

Saturday morning, and earlier service? 

THE WITNESS: There is the possibility. 

MR. ROSEN: And are you close to that now 

or are you years away ti·om that? 

THE WITNESS : I think we are close to 

that. It's something we have considered. 

Actually this past week we did hold a trial 

service like that, and so it's something we are 
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active, pretty nctive. 

Would you know how-- what could you tell 

us about the relationship you've had with the 

community and the local residents? 

THE WITNESS: In general, from my 

perspective, it's been pretty good. I know a 

couple of occasions I've had a chance to speak 

to Mr. Andrea, who is the neighbor directly 

next to us on Van Buren, very nice fellow. Sad 

to see him leave. He just moved out. 

And generally we had renlly nice 

conversations. There were on u few occasions. 

I think, some sound problems, but h~ sort of 

took care of them. 

MR. ROSEN: I lave there been complaints 

nbout members parking in driveways? 

THE WITNESS: Not that I'm aware ol~ 

MR. ROSEN: So you mentioned sound. 

Has there been -- have there been 

neighbors that have complained about latl!-night 

activities or the sound being too loud or going 

beyond 9:00 or I 0:00p.m. where there's a party 

going on? Does any oftlwt happening'1 

THE WITNESS: Not that I'm nware of 

MR. ROSEN: Do you see that happening in 
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I the future? Do you see that -- do you see -- I I MR. CAPIZZI: I think the resolution 
2 believe that we had stipulated that the 2 speaks to it not being community events. And 
3 building would not be used for community life 3 my interpretation of that provision was events 
4 cycle parties. You've held to that, I imagine? 4 unrelated to the members of the congregation. 
5 THE WITNESS: Yes. 5 MR. ROSEN: Right. So it's not a big 
6 MR. ROSEN: Are you willing to continue to 6 facility. I can't see you holding a Bar 

7 stipulate that, as well? 7 Mitzvah party for an outside fmnily that needs 

8 THE WITNESS: I mean, this is, you know, 8 100, 200 people. 

9 as a growing synagogue, I think that's 9 THE WITNESS: Are we planning on renting 
10 something that would like to potentially have 10 out the building? Our plan is not to rent out 
II the ability to do, but were it to be an II the building to members-- to nonmembers. 

12 infringement on the neighbors, it's something I 12 MR. ROSEN: You will stipulate that that's 
13 think we would definitely talk to the neighbors 13 not going to happen? 
14 about it. 14 MR. CAPIZZI: To rent it out? That's not 
15 MR. ROSEN: So are you asking us for that 15 going to happen. 
16 now? Are you asking for us to allow you to 16 MR. ROSEN: You also mentioned that you 
17 have those sort of late-night events that could 17 would, on occasion, have a tent? 
18 have a live band, let's say? 18 THE WITNESS: Yes. 
19 THE WITNESS: I don't know if that was 19 MR. ROSEN: So that would be for-- if you 
20 necessarily part of the previous conditions. 20 have a life cycle event and you have a lot of 

21 MR. ROSEN : I would have to go back to the 21 people attending, and you want to have a 
22 resolution, but I believe that we had 22 Kiddush, you have a party. But again, that's 

23 restricted-- you had testified that that 23 not to be used for family that wants to have an 
24 wouldn't be happening. 24 outdoor evening party fi·om 8:00 to 12:00 in the 
25 Are you requesting that now happen? 25 evening, that's not going to happen either? 
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I THE WITNESS: That's certainly not our I for outside events that generate more activity, 
2 intention. 2 more cars parking, car doors slamming late at 
3 MR. CAPIZZI: Isn't it the Kiddush -- if 3 night, picking up kids, that kind of thing. 
4 the Kiddush is at I :00 -- 4 That's not going the happen. 
5 MR. ROSEN: I understand. I just wanted 5 THE WITNESS : Yes, we do not expect that 
6 for the record what you intend to do and what 6 to happen. 
7 you're not going to do. "Intent" is not a good 7 MR. ROSEN: Again, you will continue to 
8 word. You have to either say you're going to 8 have a liaison with the community so that if' 
9 do or not do it. 9 the community has those concerns, they will 
10 THE WITNESS: We will not have late-night 10 express it directly to that person and to your 
I 1 events in the tent. II Board? 

12 MR. ROSEN: Thank you. 12 THE WITNESS: Yes. 
13 MR. CAPIZZI: Touching back on the 13 MR. ROSEN: Thank you. 
I4 community events. we did have-- we appreciate 14 CHAIRMAN 1-lODCiES: Ms. Jones'1 

15 some clarification on what the prohibition of 15 MS. JONES: I have a question then. I'm 
16 community events meant in the sense that if' the 16 not sure if' you're the correct person to 
17 congregation wanted to hold something to 17 answer. 
18 educate the community on a particular issue-- 18 I'm wondering what the maximum occupancy 
19 MR. ROSEN: I think-- I would certainly 19 of this building is" Do we know what that 
20 interpret that. you know. the activities of any 20 number is? 
21 synagogue. any house of' worship, to have that 21 MR. CAPIZZI: Mr. Quirk can advise. if' 
22 sort of' event would be perfectly appropriate. 22 you'd like me to call him back" 

23 I think the concern is-- and I think that 23 MR. CAPIZZI: Okay. 
24 the concern tor the neighbors are as well -- 24 MR. QUIRK: Currently, as indicated on the 
25 that you're not using the building for parties, 25 first floor plan, there's 119 seats in the 
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I snnctuary. 

2 MR. CAPIZZI: Regardless of the seal 

3 count, how many people could we fit in the 

4 snnctuary ptu suan! to the building code? 

5 MR. QUIRK: In the sanctuary itself? 

6 MR. CAPIZZI: Correct. 

7 MR. QUIRK: Probably 140, 150. 
g MS. JONES: And this number doesn't change 

9 based on these --the change in plans; is that 

10 correct? 

II MR. QUIRK: Well, slippery slope because 

12 once you get to-- for the group-- for the 

13 youth groups, once you exceed 100, then it no 

14 longer is part of the -- this group -- this 

15 group, the assembly. So no longer a part of 

16 A3. 
17 Right now it's a youth group A3. If the 

18 youth-- if the number of youths in this 

19 building exceed I 00, then it goes to an E use. 

20 So there are different parameters. 

21 MS. JONES: Okay. 

22 MR. QUIRK: But right now it's designed as 

23 an A3. 

24 MS. JONES: Thank you. 

25 MR. MULLIGAN: One more question. 
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I the high end, we're at 140. 

2 MR. QUIRK: Okay. 

3 MR. MULLIGAN: And what's the maximum 

4 occupancy for the building? 

5 MR. QUIRK: Well , I have to keep the youth 

6 group under I 00 and the sanctuary is at I 40. 

7 MR. MULLIGAN: It almost sounds like we've 

R got a truck with birds. If we don't keep half 

9 or them Jlying, the !ruck is going to break. 

10 What's the maximum number of people we 

II could put in this building where it's safe? 

12 MR. QUIRK: 140 and about 100--99. 

13 CIIAIRMAN I-lODGES: 240 in the sanctuary. 

14 MR. QUIRK: And 99 in the ... 

15 MR. MULLIGAN: But there is no maximum 

16 occurancy lor the entire building then'l 

17 MR. QUIRK: There is. but like I mentioned 

IR be!i.ll'e. then you jump into dille rent youth 

19 groups. 

20 MR. MULLIGAN: I'm concerned about the 

21 number or egresses. 

22 MR. QUIRK: No. even if it exceeded. if it 

23 went fi·om A3 to educational use for youth 

24 groups. I'd sti II have the proper number or 

25 egress. 
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With what we have now. with some ofthc 

testimony we've gotten with the number of 
families and children would come, we could he 

pre!!y close to the maximum occupancy right 

now. 
MR. QUIRK: No. You're at 72 children, 

119 adults. 
MR. MULLIGAN: They said to us they had 50 

to 60 children. 
MR. QUIRK: But you wouldn't be able to 

fit . 
MR. MULLIGAN : I don't know. I'm not 

trying to be argumentative. I'm just saying 

even if we split it, we have 70 adults and we 
have 55 children, we're knocking at the door of 

maximum occupancy. 
MR. QUIRK: We're still 49 plus for the 

adults. 
MR. CAPIZZI: In excess you're saying? 
MR. QUIRK: In excess right now for future 

growth. 
MR. MULLIGAN: I guess what I'm asking is 

what we were told was you're going to have 

between 60 and 80 adults there on a given day 
and between 50 to 60 children. So if we go to 
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MS. JONES : Thank you. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: Mr. Melli, on the 

explanation on the occupancy, do you agree with 

that? 
MR. MELFI: Well, li·om the zoning point, 

there's two difl'erent things here. There's two 
difTerent questions here. There's a zoning 

question and there's a building question. 
The zoning question is based upon formula 

that's based on the code that we're only 
allowed to calculate a calculation based uron 

how many people could lit in the assembly area. 

That's what we based our parking on. That's 
the only thing I'm allowed the base it on. 

The building code is a little di!'lcrcnt. 
The building code is based on square rootage. 

type of building and how the usage is. And 
there's tables of what you can and can't do. 

I mean. obviously whatever they end up 

doing, they're going to have to comply with 
whatever the building code is whenever they 

submit their tina! plans. 

MR. QUIRK: It's an answer I cun'! give 

you in regards to building because J honestly 

don't know at this point. 
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MR. CAPIZZI: We've designed the space 

forward-thinking to the building code so that 

what we're showing you this evening will 

hopefully be exactly what the building code 

otlicial approves. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Okay. Any other 

questions by members of the Board? 

Any questions by members of the public? 

Your first name and last name, and please 

spell your last name. 

MS. M. CAMPEAS: Miriam Campeas, 

C-A-M-P-E-A-S, M-1-R-1-A-M. 

My question for you, Mr. Weinberg, is I'm 

assuming that most of the members that will 

attend the morning, beyond morning services 

will go to work afterwards. 

So are you assuming that they're going to 

park kind of far away, walk to the synagogue, 

walk back, and then go to work, or will they 

more likely park in what you said were the 

available spaces all around? 

You know, is that what-- you're really 

assuming people arc going to park a half mile 

away to walk to a synagogue when you say they 

live really close, all within walking distance, 
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But yes, I believe that they would then 

get into their cars, especially on Griggs, when 

where you're not actually allowed to park 

during the convening period. 

9:00. 

MS. M. CAMPEAS: Starts at 8:00, not 7:00. 

THE WITNESS: I thought it started at 

But yeah, they will not be leaving their 

cars there. So I do believe that they would go 

home and then -- so there would be increased 

tratlic around the time of starting of 

services. 
MS. M. CAM PEAS: Have you modeled this 

based oil' of other synagogues') For example, in 

Beth Aaron, if I drive by during most mornings, 

there is parking all around and increased 

congestion. very, you know. kind of stops. So 

I mean, J'mjust wondering have you based--

TI IE WITNESS: So Beth Aaron has a gigantic 

membership. so they get a lot more than 15 

cars. So it's probably I 5 cars parking on 

Queen Anne. So it's kind of hard to really 

compare the two. 

MS. M. CAM PEAS: But you're expecting 

growth. 
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and go back in their cars and go to work and 

nwke it in time'l 

THE WITNESS: So you mentioned a half mile 

awuy? I wouldn't expect them to park u half 

mile away, just within a one-block radius. is 

there plenty of available parking? So in my 

occasion when I've gone into other synagogues, 

I would drive to the synagogue and I would 

park, and then I would drive back home and take 

the bus to work. 

MS. M. CAMPEAS: So we can assume that 

there will be increased cars for the morning 

services around the areas in like, you know, I 

live on Griggs Avenue, catty-corner to your 

building. We can assume that there will be 

more cars during that time parking there? 

THE WITNESS: It is certainly possible. 

Like I said, we are oflering six parking spaces 

now and there is ample parking just right in 

fi·ont of the synagogue on Van Buren. 

So with the number of people that we 

expect coming to the services, I would think 

that most of them-- there will probably not be 

an uptake on Griggs, but it certainly is 

possible. 
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THE WITNESS: Yes, it would take a long 

time to get to that growth. 

MS. M. CAM PEAS: And then my next question 

is, you said that you feel that most of-- that 

you have a really good relationship with the 

members of the community. They're not part of 

your synagogue, members in the area. 

And you said that for the parking, you did 

an unotlicial poll. 1-lave you done that li.1r the 

eommunity relationship') Have you done an 

unolliciul polJ'l Have you uskcd members 

outside the eommunities. like the neighbors 

that ure here tonight. ubout tlwt'? 
Till~ Wl'fNESS: About what') 

MS. M. CAM Pi cAS: About how your synagogue 

and members pnst have n.:lationship with 

community. Because I think most of us feel 

that we huve bet::n dealt deceitfully with and we 

haw not seen hide nor hair of this omnibus 

[sic]. And I have noise complaints liJr the 

morning at least. I know that l(ll' the night. 

you're not allowed to muke noise. but I am a 

student. I study late. I tend to sleep in the 

mornings on Saturdays. and I haven't f(>und 

someone to complain to. 
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MR. CAPIZZI: Let's break it down into a 

question before we answer, Mr. Weinberg. 

MS. M. CAMPEAS: How have you assessed 

that you have good relationship with the 

COilllllUnity'? 

THE WITNESS: Well, we have an ombudsman, 

and there has not been complaints to that 

ombudsman. lt is listed on the website. It 

has been transmitted to the neighbors around 

the time of the Board meeting last time. So if 

there were complaints, then they should be --

CHAIRMAN HODGES: All right. I'm sorry. 

!just want to interrupt for a second. How are 

you communicating this ombudsman to the 

community? 

THE WITNESS: 1 believe at the time it was 

sent as a letter. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: What the agreement was 

with this Board at the time was that every year 

on January 1, your congregation was supposed to 

send a letter or stick it in our mailbox to say 

who the individual was. 

l-Ias that been done? 

THE WITNESS: Yeah, I guess. 

CHAJRMAN HODGES: That was our agreement. 
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CHAIRMAN HODGES: I'm not trying to look 

for-- I'm just trying to bring out the facts . 

THE BOARD SECRETARY: First of all, before 

you finish, the people in the audience, your 

comments have to be dealt with at the mike. No 

outbursts from the audience. We have a 

transcript. We need to cooperate in order to 

have that transcript-- to be able to be read 

by the other members. 

MR. CAPIZZI: The resolution only requires 

notice ifthere's a change in the 

representative. And when there has been a 
change. notice has been sent out. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: And has that notice been 

sent out'1 

MR. CAPIZZI: Mr. Shapiro, ifyou could 

step up to the microphone, please? 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Could you please state 

your name'? 

MR. SHAPIRO: Akiva Shapiro. A-K-1-Y-A, 

S-1-1-A-P-1-R-0. I am the ultorney for the 

congregation in the litigation. So I've been 

representing the congregation since 2010 to the 

present in litigation with the township. 

So spcei lically question or--

I 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 
12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

62 
WEINBER(i - 1211 S/14 

Every single year. it's supposed to be tiKi!. 

And Mr. Capizzi was here too. Every year it's 

supposed to be-- because it could change. It 

could be this person and people move and they 

change and they don't want to do things, people 

help. 

So every year is supposed to be the 

community, the surrounding area is supposed to 

know who this person is, not to look it up on 

your website. 

THE WITNESS: So I am familiar 

respective-- it's okay to defer to Matt . 

MR. CAPIZZI: We have been doing that. 

CHAIRMAN !·lODGES: You have been? 

MR. CAPIZZI: Correct. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Okay. That's why I 

asked him. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: So you have done that? 

MR. CAPIZZI: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN I-lODGES: Did you receive that? 

MS. M. CAMPEAS: No. I think everyone 

here fi·om not in a synagogue has not received 

that. 

And this just keeps with the theme of 

being dealt deceitfully with--
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1 CHAIRMAN HODGES: Mr. Ritvo, you want to 

2 swear Mr.-Simpiro in? 

3 A K I V A S H A P I R 0, 

4 called as a witness , having first been 

5 duly sworn, was ex.amined and testified as 

6 follows : 

7 MR. SHAPIRO: So the stipulation that the 

8 Board placed on the congregation last time was 

9 that when there --that when there were changes 

10 in the ombudsman. that would be sent out. 

I I It's only been an ombudsman appointed one 

I 2 time and that same person has been the 

13 ombudsmnn since his appointment. And so there 

14 hasn't been a need to send nul the annual 

15 updates_ So that's the story. 

I 6 CIIAIRMAN IIOD(iES: Ms. McLean. isn't on all 

17 our applications with congregations. haven't we 

18 in the past said that every Jm1uary I. they 

19 have to rcnotif)!? 

20 THE BOARD SECRETARY: That was always 

21 made--

22 Cl-1!\IRMAN IIODCjES: It's always been made a 

23 verbal statement here. I've been here fi.Jr 

24 countless applications. and I mean-- I'm sorry 

25 il'it's not in there. 1vrittcn in there. I'm 
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sorry, I wouldn't have brought it up. 

But it's like every single congregation--

and it's just that you have new people moving 

in, how do I know every neighbor. You could 

send it one year and two years later, half the 

neighbors move away and they would never know 

who this person is. 

MR. SHAPIRO: There's ceiiainly no 

opposition fi·om the --

CHAJRMAN HODGES: And I'm not trying to 

make it that. And I don't want to make it like 

we're trying to put you on the spot. But that 

has been our agreement all along. 

Mr. Melfi, in this agreement that's not in 

there? 

MR. MELFI: I was out tor a second. 

The question is? 

MR. ROSEN: Do we have a copy of the 

resolution? 

MR. MELFI: There should be a copy of the 

resolution attached with your-- with the 

application. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Whether there is or not, 

you can't undo something that was supposed to 

be done. 
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don't pay the bill, I will never know. 

But just keeping it fresh is just the nice 

thing to do. 

TJ-JE BOARD SECRETARY: And just to satisfY 

that point, the property owners list is $10, so 

you can request that list every December and 

we'll just give you the updated list. 

But if a person has bought the property 

within the three-month period, they would not 

be on the new list, but we could give you an 

updated list. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: I'm almost -- I don't 

want to quote exactly, but I almost can 

remember when you bought this up, somebody 

asking from the congregation do we have to mail 

this? No, you can deliver it. You can walk by 

and deliver to everybody. So everybody can 

take a handf'ul and drop them otT. 

MR. CAPIZZI: Another lawyer handled the 

initial application and we'll -- I'm going to 

do my best to make sure whatever comes as a 

result ofthis application will adhere to. 

CHAIRMAN I-lODGES: You want the rest read 

into the record? There's all the piece that I 

read up to address, then it goes to telephone 
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MR. CAPIZZI: If I may, it is in the 

resolution. It's just the way apparently it's 

been interpreted by the congregation was only 

to notice if there was a change. 13ut I could 

read it into the record and if there's a 

clarification on our part that's necessary, 

we'll take care of it. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: I have it right here. 

"This will be a representative ofthe 

congregation designated as community liaison. 

"Designation of such person shall be made 

annually no later that December I of each year. 

If the representative is changed for any 

reason, the name of the replacement, address--

THE BOARD SECRETARY: It's missing a page. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: But as you see, it's 

every year. That's why I'm not -- believe me, 

I'm not here to scold anybody or-- that's not 

my point. I'm just trying to share that we 

need to keep a relationship here that these 

people know, hey, Mr. X, whoever it is or 

Ms. X, is the person. 

And because people lose stufl: To tell 

you the truth, I don't even know what my 

garbageman's name is because I lose it. lfl 
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number, cell phone number, other contact 

numbers shall be provided to the construction 

code oflicial and all neighbors within a 

200-toot radius of the property within 30 days. 

The representative shall respond to all 

inquiries no later than 72 hours after contact. 

Okay. 

MR. SHAPIRO: Just so the record is clear, 

it does say if the representative is changed. 

MR. CAPIZZI: Within 30 days ofthe 

change. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Within 30 days ofthe 

change, but it also says annually. 

MR. SIIAPIRO: Again, it doesn't-- we're 

happy to do it going ((Jrward. I just want to, 

you know--

MR. CAPIZZI: That's it. 

MR. SIIAPIRO: All right. 

CIIAIRMAN I lODGES: Mr. Capizzi, am I 

reading this bottom of page 9, beginning or 

page 10'? 

MR. CAPIZZI: Correct. 

CHAIRMAN I-lODGES: So this wilL no matter 

what. because we're almost coming up to 

December 31. so by next meeting. all these 
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neighbors will know who the person is, right? I 

MR. CAPIZZI: Correct. 2 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: So we have something 3 
accomplished here. We're on a roll. 4 

MR. CAPIZZI: May I request my list now, 5 
Ms.-McLean? 6 

THE BOARD SECRETARY: Ten dollars, please. 7 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: So your question about 8 

them knowing was a mistake, was an oversight, 9 

it wi II be done from now on in the future. So I 0 
we've got one thing straight. II 

The second part of your question was about 12 

will cars be parked there more often? 13. 

One question is ifl live two blocks away 14 

from the synagogue, I'll simplifY your 15 
question. If person X Jives two blocks away 16 

from the synagogue and he has to go for a 7 :00 I 7 
service, and has to be at work at 8:30, do you 18 

expect him to drive to the synagogue, go to 19 
service, and then drive directly to work, or do 20 

you think he's going to walk two blocks to the 21 

synagogue, walk back two blocks to get his car 22 

and then go to work? 23 

THE WITNESS: Well, if-- I would say that 24 
that person may decide to drive and park, but a 25 
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If we can figure out how many people I 

actually are commuters -- 2 

THE WITNESS: Of those 15 or 20 people 3 
that will be attending? 4 

CHAlRMAN HODGES: Yeah, if you could have 5 
the rabbi ask. They generally socialize after 6 
a little bit. If they could just ask them, 7 

show of hands, and now you can know for the 8 
next meeting. 9 

At least just so we know, most ofthe guys 10 
are going to come tor the morning. They're 11 

jumping on the bus, they walk in there, they 12 

get on the bus and they go to work and think it 13 
would relieve a lot of people's tension about 14 

how much parking is going to be lef1 on the 15 
street. 16 

HIE WITNESS: Yeah, we also are talking 17 
about 15 to 20 cars. 18 

MR. CAPIZZI: We'll work up the numbers 19 
tC.1r the next time. 20 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Did you have any other 21 

questions? 22 

MS. M. CAMPEAS: I'm not sure if this next 23 
question is relevant. If it's not, I'll 24 
withdmw it. 25 
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lot of people-- well. yeah. I think yeah. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: That's a hard question 

to answer. Let me ask you this: I'm trying to 
help you out a little bit. if you don't mind? 

MS. M. CAM PEAS: Don't mind. Thank you. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: How many of your 

congregants -- is that the right word? 

Tl IE WITNESS: Sure. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: How many of your 

congregants take the bus to get to work? 
THE WITNESS: I do not have that number. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: How about the next 

meeting. If you're going to-- if you can tell 

us truthfully that 90 percent of them take the 
bus, then we're -- then we're bringing our 

number down that might be parking daily. If 
it's that most of them drive to work, now we're 

looking at a higher parking. I mean, I'm 

trying to figure out -- I know I can't say to 
you, give me the exact number and you come up 

here and give me a number and you're -- and I 
want to just compliment you on your testimony, 

you've been excellent. I mean this is great. 

And I think that's what we're looking for, but 

I'm just trying to help you. 
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l believe you said that on Sabbath there's 

not a Jot of traffic because-- car traffic 

because you -- Orthodox Jews do not travel on 
the Sabbath. And so it's only going to be on 
the week it's atfected since it's not on the 

weekends. 
But isn't it a common practice, at least 

in Teaneck, I believe, that you drive your car 
to synagogue betbre Friday night services, 

leave it there until 1-lavdalah, where it ends, 
the Sabbath ends. and then take your car away. 

So could it potentially be that cars are left 

there /rom f'riday night to Saturday also 
increasing pm·king'1 

I'J-IE WITNESS: Yes. That does happen now. 

/\nd we have approximately-- I've done my own 
layout. There's about live people who do that. 

So we have about live spots taken up in front 
of-- on Van 13uren that are taken up and we 

will have six spots on the plan. 
So of the current people who clo that, they 

would be able to park /i_illy in the driveway. 

CIIAJRMAN !-lODGES: Can l ask one more 
question? 

Since you've been there. you've been in 
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this congregation how long? I 
THE WITNESS: Two and a halfyears. 2 
MR. 1-IOGDGES: Have you ever heard them 3 

making an announcement asking people to make -- 4 
on a Sabbath to sure they walk instead of 5 

parking their cars in front of other people's 6 

houses? 7 

THE WITNESS : We have not-- we have not 8 

seen that initially. They don't really end up 9 
parking in fi·ont of other people's houses. I 0 

They end up parking-- II 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Have you ever made the 12 

announcement? 13 
THE WITNESS: l have never made the 14 

announcement. It's not something I felt 15 

that -- we felt that that was not -- 16 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: That's another thing 17 

we've asked the congregations to do, just to 18 
try to have -- you know, let's say if this 19 

young lady is at her house and over the weekend 20 

she's having a birthday party, at least the 21 
neighbor can, you know, just like a neighborly 22 

thing do, so if they could maybe try to talk to 23 
whoever is in charge --well, you're in charge 24 

now. 25 

WEINBERG- 12/18114 

THE WITNESS: Yeah, well ... 

75 

MR. HARRIS: So the way I see it, that's a 

growth of 40 families over four years, which is 
not a growth of five families per year but 

rather a growth of ten families per year. 
THE WITNESS: So I would say for-- l 

think it's relevant, the associate members for 

that. A lot of the associate members really do 
not-- are joining the shu! more as a-- you 

know, they feel somehow connected, maybe 
they'll come once in a while, but it's not 

their primary synagogue. And so to sort of 
think about that as sort ofthe growth ofthe 

base membership is-- l don't think you really 
should include those ten members. So we're 

talking about approximately 30 members over the 
last five years now. 

MR. HARRIS: Four years . 

THE WITNESS: Excuse me. 
MR. HARRIS: Of the 35 families that were 

members in 20 I 0, how many of them were 

associate members? 

THE WITNESS: I don't actually know if 
they were associate memberships at that time. 
So I was not here, I don't know so I would have 
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THE WITNESS: for that weekend? 

CHAIRMAN I-lODGES: Yes. Maybe you can 
start doing that just to-- just a neighborly 

thing that --you know, a lot of times grandma 
coming over. you don't want her walking too 

far. 
THE WITNESS: Sure. That's fine. 

CIIAJRMAN I lODGES: That satisfy that? 

MS. M. CAM PEAS: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Any other questions from 
members ofthe audience? 

Yes, sir? 

MR. HARRIS: Joe Harris again from 
Teaneck, H-A-R-R-1-S. 

Growth rate. You stated that in 2010 

there were approximately 35 families? 

THE WITNESS: That's correct. 
MR. HARRIS: And then tonight you began by 

saying you have 75 families, and then later on 
you said that ten of them are associate 

members. but a Iota 1 of 7 5. 
THE WITNESS: Yeah, we like to think about 

it in terms of-- well, let me stop. You can 

go ahead. 
MR. HARRIS : Those were your figures. 
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to look back at that. 

MR. HARRIS: So I'm just going to, based 
on ignorance, I'm going to say that three of 

them, because you're going with percentages so 
I'm going to go with them too. And I want to 

be systematic in how I approach it. So if35 
members, then we'll say 33. Thirty-two were--

32 were not associate members . 

So we're now at 65 nonassociate members, 

which means a doubling a membership of 
nonassociatc members in four years. I 

congratulate you. 

MR. CAPIZZI: You're making a statement 
that's not supported, but thank you. 

MR. IIARRIS: Shall! interrupt you as 
wdl'1 

MR. CAPIZZI: WelL you're making a 
statement . 

Clli\IRMJ\N HODGES: Mr. Harris, what we're 
going to do is we're just going to ask 

questions and we'll move right along here. 

MR. HARRIS: So it seems to me that it's 

reasonable to assume that you'll be going up at 

least ten per year now because you've been 
going up in the last four years seven or eight, 
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but I don't know the trajectory. I would 
assume that as the temple grows and as the 

composition of the town changes and 
improvements in the temple going on, I think 

it's reasonable to assume that you will go up 
the next several years somewhere around ten per 

year. 
So that brings me up to I 00 in the not 

very distance future . So I'm concerned, or my 

question is-- sounds to me like the 
projections for the future are low and that the 

town when basing its approval of changes in the 

structure of the limitations placed upon the 

house ofworship because of its location, need 
to bear in mind, and I'm wondering to what 

extent this is really happening, that you 

are -- in what you're projecting and the usage 
is really coming forward in your statements. 

So it doesn't sound to me I ike it is --
CHAIRMAN HODGES: Mr. Harris, what's your 

question? 
MR. HARRIS : That's my question. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: I want to try to help 

you out too. Even if Mr. Weinberg was the 

greatest guy going and let's say Mr. Capizzi 
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they'll count how many, and shut it right down. 

So I mean, the maximum is not going to go 

over. So no matter how great this synagogue is 
or how not great it is, we just want to just 
get a number for the operation. That's our 

key, the operation that is occurring. 
MR. HARRIS: One more quickie. 

I'm the fourth house down on Griggs Avenue 

from the corner. 
THE WITNESS: Closer to Palmer? 
MR. HARRIS : No, I'm closer to Queen Anne. 

I'm the fourth house down ti·om Queen Anne. 

THE WITNESS : Out between Queen Anne and 

Palmer? 
MR. HARRIS : Correct. So-- and I'm on 

the other side of the street. So I was trying 

to calculate 200 feet as we were sitting here 
and I'm guessing I may be 225 teet don't know. 

So where I'm going is that I'm very much 

allected by what happens at the temple and I 
would appreciate if the Goard were to have the 

ombudsman notification requirement to extend 

beyond 200 feel because I think I'm outside the 

limit. And seems to me that there's a lot of 
neighbors who probably fall outside that limit 
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was the rabbi. he's the greatest rabbi in New 

Jersey and their families increased 

200 percent, the bottom line is that we have a 
building code that says maximum occupancy. So 

we can project whatever you want to say it's 
going to grow this much, the bottom line is 

that the Board is using a number to go by a 

guideline right now, and I can only go by a 
guideline that we have. 

So we can't just estimate that it's going 

to keep going up. Because just like this 

bottle of water, you can only fill it up so 

much. 
We are 140 --the testimony was 140 chairs 

in this assembly haul? 
THE WITNESS: 119. 
CHAIRMAN I-lODGES: 119. There's I 19 seats 

and the maximum occupancy is whatever it is, 

that's it. 
If you're the next-door neighbor and you 

see and you sit out there one afternoon and you 
say wait a second, I counted 150. That's when 

you call Mr. Melfi . Next Saturday Mr. Melfi 
will be there, or one of his guys will be 

there, throw the fire department in there, 
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but nonetheless are affected by what's going on 

inside and would like to be included in the 

loop. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: We don't have control on 

that while we're in the application. 
Maybe you could speak to Mr. Weinberg 

later and they can put you on a separate list. 

That's up to them. 
MR. HARRIS: Don't you set the 200-toot 

Iimit'l 

CHAIRMAN I-lODGES: No. 

MR. HARRIS: 1 see. 
THE GOARD SECRETARY: Mr. Harris, what is 

your address'? 
MR. HARRIS: 267 Griggs Avenue. 

TI IE BOARD SECRETARY: l-Ie's 200 feet. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: You'll be on the list. 

And. Mr.- Harris, when you come back for 
lhe next meeting, I'm going to ask you if you 

got the notice. 
MR. HARRIS : I just wanted to stale for 

the record that I look at my mail every day and 

I have never received the notification of the 
original ombudsman ever. I have never received 
any communication--
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CHAIRMAN HODGES: We're looking tlmvard to I 

a positive -- 2 

MR. HARRIS: -- in any way, shape or form 3 

from the synagogue. 4 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Okay. 5 

MR. HARRIS: Thank you. 6 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Any other person would 7 

like to ask a question? 8 

Mr. Campeas? 9 

UNIDENTIFIED AUDIENCE MEMBER: Could I I 0 

just make a comment about parking? 11 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: No, you can't make 12 

comments. 13 

THE BOARD SECRETARY: Comments at the end 14 

of everything. 15 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: State your name? 16 

MR. CAMPEAS: RifCampeas. The original 

application stated there were 25 member 

families; is that correct or not? 

THE WITNESS: I do not know. 

MR. CAMPEAS: Could we check the 

transcript? It's at 25 --

CHAIRMAN HODGES: What difference would 

that make? 

MR. CAMPEAS: This is growth--
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MR. CAMPEAS: Could you please tell me how 

you arrive at five events a month? 

THE WITNESS: In terms of the resolution? 

MR. CAMPEAS: Yes. 

THE WITNESS: I don't know the resolution 

offhand. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: I put-- when we did the 

last resolution, it was put in there, five 

events a month. 

MR. CJ\MPEAS: It was put in there one a 

week. 

MR. CAPIZZI: There are two separate line 

items. One says, specifically on page 8 of the 

resolution, it states "classes and the study 

groups shall be limited to one per month. 

Additional services, hoi idays. additional 

programs is once per week, for a total of five 

per month." 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Total or livc'l 

MR. CAPIZZI: Correct. 

MR. CAMPEAS: Additional services. 

holiday, additional programs once a week. 

classes and study groups once per month. 

How many have you been conducting'l 

THE WITNESS: I've actually conducted zero 
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CHAIRMAN HODGES: Wait one second. Just 

so everybody knows, this is an entirely new 

application. You know, any-- tor us to go 

back and say well let's compare what's said 

this time to that time, not going to make a 

eli tl'erence. 

So this -- Mr. Weinberg's already 

testified that he's been a member two and a 

half years. He wasn't even a member of the 

congregation. I don't know if he was living in 

Teaneck when this original application went the 

first time. 

So what we're going to do is from today 

moving forward. I'm not going to go back to 

what happened last year-- last time. I'm not 

going to go back to how they testified last 

time. I'm glad that so far this seems like 

testimony has been great. I'm going to keep 

this forward, we're going to keep this positive 

and going to listen to all the facts and make a 

decision, okay? 

MR. CAMPEAS: Okay. You stated that there 

are five events a month? 

THE WITNESS: Correct. That's what is 

allowed for in the resolution. 
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per month. 

MR. CAMPEAS: What? 

THE WITNESS: Of the extra-- on average 

we have -- every once in a while we have a 

children's youth program, but we do not have 

regularly scheduled classes . So really that 

would be zero. 

MR. CAMPEAS: You said that you needed 

these classrooms because it was disruptive and 

disorderly that the children were there? 

THE WITNESS: Uh-huh. 

MR. CAMPEAS: Did you ever think about 

what it's I ike for everybody around the 

synagogue when the children are disorderly and 

disruptive at 9:00 in the morning on Saturday? 

TH E WITNESS: So most of the children 

really do not show up at 9:00. They show up 

sort of as the service continues. But they do 

stay. you know, within the backyard and they 

are supervised. So children are children. 

They make noise on a swing set. 

MR. CAMPEAS: So the disruptiveness is 

important in terms of what happens tlJr you in 

the classroom, but in terms ofthe neighbors, 

that's okay'l 
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Tl IE WITNESS: No. In the-- well. it's. 

you know, I'll say this is why we're here 

today. We really would like to get youth 

groups so that we can to try to mitigate those 

issues. 

MR. CAM PEAS: So would you-- you know, 

you said that there have been no complaints 

tl·om the neighbors? 

THE WITNESS: I said that-- well, go 

ahead with the question. 

MR. CAMPEAS: Are you aware the police 

were called? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. As I said. there were 

times, there were a couple of occasions where 

there were some sound complaints. One of them 

I believe it was a misunderstanding because the 

police were called because we were having 

service during the week, but it was actually a 

holiday. And the gentleman who called the 

police didn't realize that it was a holiday. 

And so we spoke to them and that was the end of 

it. 

MR. CAMPEAS: And the other times? 

THE WITNESS: I don't know. I've only 

been a member there when the police have been 
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but as long as I'm here, I will guarantee that 

everybody here will be asked as soon us this 

starts, have you received information on the 

ombudsman. 

I'm sure Mr. Weinberg-- I'm saying it 

right here, he knows I'm going to do it. 

everybody will take care of it. I'm not going 

to go over and have every single person come up 

and say "I never received anything." You know 

what? We already know that. Everybody knows 

they didn't do it, they forgot. They made a 

mistake. 

It's admitted, they said they made it. 

People make mistakes. I've made mistakes. I'm 

sure you have made a mistake. you know. We arc 

going to go past it. 

Any other question that you h<lVe. proceed 

and that's it. 

MS. JONES: May I say one thing? Just to 

piggyback on what you had said bel(>rc about --

1 think that you had asked Mr. Weinberg and 

everybody else. only specitically to you. 

testify only to what you know. And I think 

what's happening is that when you keep saying 

well, they sent this four years ago. you 
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called just one time. So I really can't speak 

to the previous occasions on exactly why they 

were out there. 

MR. CAM PEAS: So how is your judgment that 

the relationship with neighbors is good? 

THE WITNESS: As I explained before, we 

have not had any or no complaints to the 

ombudsman, so that's how I gauge that. 

MR. CAM PEAS: And so the fact that nobody 

knew there was an ombudsman, nobody knew the 

name, does that affect your judgment on whether 

there was any dissatisfaction with the way that 

the congregation handled things? 

THE WITNESS: So the ombudsman was-- I 

believe was distributed four years ago. 

MR. CAMPEAS: Never distributed to 

anybody--

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Mr. Campeas, okay. 

We're not going to come up and have every 

single person come up and start talking about 

how they made a mistake with the ombudsman. 

It's done, the mistake is past. I trust that 

Mr. Weinberg will take care of this. 

The next meeting, I guarantee I'll be 

chairing unless something-- unless I'm sick, 
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admitted you weren't here four years ago. 

So I think that's where there's this 

miscommunication happening. So if you could 

just stick to what you do know tor factual for 

the two and a half years you were there, I 

think that might help alleviate some of the 

concern. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: And even if they ask you 

something that's for last week and you weren't 

there, as you stated, not everybody goes every 

week, ifyou weren't there, just say I don't 

know. You could even be there and you didn't 

see it. I just don't-- you can answer "I 

don't know." You're not on the spot that you 

have to answer a question. Just so we have --

THE BOARD SECRETt\RY: t\nd bcl(m~ you go 

forward, so we can clear this up. Mr. Capizzi. 

I'll have the updated list lllr you Monday. 

MR. CAPIZZI: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Proceed. 

MR. CAMPEAS: You said that there are 200 

spots avnilable. correct? 

THE WITNESS: I think we had spoken with 

the Board about this. It's not actually 

something I know specilic<Jlly and that's 
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something I would defer to the plunncr. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: What happened was he 
said he got that fi·om planner. Remember we 

talked about that, that's not his words. So 
we're not going to proceed with that's whut he 

said. 
MR. CAMPEAS: Okay. Have you ever seen 

anybody park in the driveway? 

THE WITNESS: Of the synagogue, yes. 
MR. CAMPEAS: How olten does that happen? 

THE WITNESS: Can you be a little bit more 

specitic in the question? 

MR. CAMPEAS: How many times have you seen 
that, in the driveway? 

THE WITNESS: Cars park there every day. 

MR. CAMPEAS: On Saturdays, how often do 

you see that? 

THE WITNESS: I do not see cars parked in 
the driveways on Saturdays. 

MR. CAMPEAS: How many cars, on average, 

do you see parked on the street in fi·ont of the 
synagogue on Saturday, from Friday night to 

Saturday night? 
THE WITNESS: So I testi tied there are 

about five members -- on average about five to 
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THE WITNESS: I'm talking about my own 

personal garbage. 
MR. CAMPEAS: Yes. 
THE WITNESS: I'm not sure of the 

relevance but, yes, my garbage is picked up 
twice a week. 

MR. CAMPEAS: And people will be coming 

and parking how many tim~s a week at the 

synagogue now? 
THE WITNESS: They will b~ coming five 

times a week now. 

MR. CAMPEAS: Sunday'? 
THE WITNESS: Excuse me'! 

MR. CAMPEJ\S: Sunday. Monday and they 
would be coming in the ev~ning too? 

Til[ WITNESS: Correct. 
MR. CJ\MPEJ\S: So we would have trallic 

around our homes every day. twice a clay: is 
that correct? 

THE WITNESS: That is correct. 
These me around the times where people 

are leaving for work and corning home !i·om work. 

Sol believe there's trallic there now. These 
are not extra, out of the normal time ol"peoplc 

driving to and tJ·om work. 
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six cars I think. 

MR. CAMPEAS: So on weekday mornings. 
you're going to expect people to arrive at what 

time and start parking and opening and slamming 
their doors or shutting their doors? 

THE WITNESS: So as l testified, it would 
be beginning at 7:00, but those who are coming 

and driving, they should be respt:ctful to 
neighbors. 

MR. CAMPEAS: So do you think that people 

will arrive at 7:00, before 7:00? 

THE WITNESS: Our services begin at 7:00, 
and I would expect them to arrive around 7:00. 

MR. CAMPEAS: Do you think that that sort 

of noise is going to be disruptive to people 
who live and sleep in the houses nearby? 

THE WITNESS: I would, you know, hope not. 

Listen, my garbage is picked up at 6:00 a.m. or 
waste management comes by at 5:00 a.m. and I 
don't know if there are-- they do that and I 

would say listen, if there's a problem and you 
feel like there is an issue, that's certainly 

something you can talk to the ombudsman about. 

MR. CAMPEAS: So that your garbage is 
picked up twice a week? 
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MR. CAMPEAS: How many people do you think 

come and park on Van Buren next to Queen Anne 
on a regular basis every morning? 

THE WITNESS: Well, I don't have those 
exact numbers but, you know, like I said, there 
are approximately six to ten cars on Queen Anne 

based on my intbrmal survey. 

MR. CAMPEAS: Is there a school bus stop 
right outside? 

THE WITNESS: l don't know. 

MR. CAMPEAS: Yes, there is. 

So you're going to be taking up the spots 

where the school bus comes that picks up kids 
on Van Buren--

CHAIRMAN I-lODGES: Mr. Campeas. ask 

questions. 

MR. CAMPEAS: Ask questions? 
Do you think it would be disruptive to the 

school bus that stops there to have your 
congregation parking there? 

TilE WITNESS: I do not think so. 

MR. CAMPEJ\S: Ofthe stipulations that 

were made last time. how many have you complied 

with? 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: How would he know') 
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MR. CAMI'EAS: How would he know'! It's 

listed right here. He just has to look and see 

which-- at the stipulations. 

Cl-IAIRMAN 1-lODCJES: If you know, say so. If 

you don't know. say "I don't know." 

TI IE WITNESS: I can't talk about it. 
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MR. CAMPEAS: llavc you built-- have you 7 

put up the vegetation as n sound barrier? 8 

THE WITNESS: So it wns ngrced upon-- 9 

MR. CAPIZZI: We're getting-- I 0 

MR. CAMI'EAS: Excuse me. Could he not-- II 

THE BOARD SECRETARY: Wait a minute. Now 12 

you can both wait. One person at a time. We 

hnve a stenographer who's trying to do the best 

she cnn under the circumstances. One person at 

n time. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Let me just say one 

thing. This isn't Court TV. So this is not 

your witness. You're not Perry Mason here. 

So right now, this is his attorney. If 

his attorney wnnts him not to answer n 

question, he's allowed to do thnt. That's 

fine. And I have to decide, yes, answer the 

question, or no, don't answer the question. 

I can nsk my nttorney what should I do if 
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to be clenr. We want to mnke n good decision. 

I think we made a good decision last time. I 

hope to make n good decision this time. But 

you can't just have him nnswer whnt happened 

lnst time. 
He admitted -- not admitted -- he 

testified that he's only been here two nnd a 

half years, he's only president lor six months. 

My congregation, I'm not in charge where I 

go to church at. I don't know whnt decisions 

nrc mnde. I don't know whether they're making 

any violntions. If I was the president. maybe 

I would. but I'm not. 

Mr. Capizzi. you hnd something to say'l 

MR. CAPIZ7.1: Yes. With regard to the 

outside site improvements allcr the approvals 

in 20 I 0. there was some outstanding i tcms to be 

resolved. And as a result oftrying to resolve 

those issues. there was agreement between the 

township and the congregation to put those 

improvements in abeyance until we can get some 

clari lication. 

CHAIRMAN IIODGI:S: Does that answer your 

question. Mr. Campeas'? 
MR. CAMI'EAS: I'm not sure. 
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I feel that I'm not exactly sure. 

You're asking this witness some questions 

that he doesn't know the answer to. I'm not 

going to sit here-- we're not going to all 

keep everybody here all night so we can badger 

somebody. That's not what's going to happen. 

Ifyou have questions, you can ask them. 

lie doesn't know how many violations there are, 

that there are violations. If you observe 

violations, you could have called the building 

department every time you observed one and they 

would take action or they would evaluate the 

violation and they would take action. 

So asking this man here isn't helping us 

or helping us make a decision up here. I need 

to have a clear thought on what's going on and 

I look to you people that are sitting here that 

are interested enough to come and bring more 

facts. l don't know every single question to 

ask. You're helping me. But you're not 

helping if you're trying to throw a lot ofjunk 

on the fire that I can't figure out because I'm 

mixing everything up. 

I don't want to mix it up. I want to be 

clear. I want the people that are here with me 
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CHAIRMAN HODGES: What happened was there 

was an agreement made. The agreement was taken 

to court, it went through a process where it 

went back and forth and it was agreed that 

certain items that were agreed to on the 

resolution were put in abeyance. 

At this time they brought in nnother 

application because the property has now 

changed. And they're in the pausing period now 

because we're not going to say go do this ti·01n 
last time. We have a new application up. So 

anything that happens now will be all new. 

Jryou believe there should be vegetation 

up there, you can ask Mr. Weinberg. do you 

think it would be better for the neighbors to 

have vegetation around the property'? That's a 

good question to ask. Or do you think that you 

would find it proper to help the neighbors with 

the sound by having vegetation around'l That's 

a question. But not didn't you do that because 

he was not in charge. Okay'? 

MR. CAM PEAS: Okay. Do you think that 

there should be some things done to abate the 

noise that all the neighbors hnve to listen to'? 

TJ IE WITNESS: Yes. So on the site plan. 
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we do have vegetation in place, or on the sile 

plan !here will be vegetation put up. Holly 

t1·ees and the like. 

MR. CAPIZZI: That was a particular item 

that we skipped upon with Mr. Quirk's 

testimony. lfyou'd like, I can call him back 

to till in. ifyou'd like? 

MR. CAMPEAS: Okay. I think that's it. 

MR. REHMAN: A question. 

A couple of people spoke about the noise. 

Can you just elaborate on what you mean by 

noise? Is this just car doors closing as 

people are going to the temple or is this 

something unusual? 

MR. CAMPEAS: I can only talk about the 

noise on Saturday mornings which starts before 

9:00, wakes people in my house up, continues 

until the end of services. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: You know what? One 

second. 
Mr. Ritvo, can you have him-- can you 

swear Mr. Campeas in before he answers the 

question. 

R IF CAMP E AS, 

called as a witness, having been first duly s""'m, 
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your house at compared to the synagogue? 

MR. CAMPEAS: If Queen Anne is here, 

Herrick is here (indicating), I'm the 
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catty-corner house. 4 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: Across lrom Queen Anne? 5 

MR. CAMPEAS: No. ll'this is --I'm 6 

sorry. lfthis is Van Buren. I'm on Griggs, so 

I'm exactly-- there's one house here that I 

don't reside in and the next house in on Griggs 

that's cally-corner --

CIIAIRMAN I-lODGES: So your backyard-

MR. CAM PEAS: It's catty-corner to the 

synagogue. 
CIIJ\IRMAN IIODCJI:S: Let me ask you this 

quest ion. 

II' this upplicalion passed. do you think 

if the congregation ugrced lo let !he children 

inside earlier and kept them inside until 9:00, 

will thai salisl)' the noise'? 
MR. CJ\Ml'lcAS: No 11 will not satisJy the 

noise because it's not one or two kids playing. 

It's I ike having a playground oulside my house. 

CHAIRMAN 1-lODCiES: What time') 

MR. CAM PicAS: Until II :00 or 12:00. I 

moved into a house !hal was a residential area. 
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was eY~lTI1inecl arrl testified as follows: 

MR. RITVO: Mr. Campeas. you're linishing 

your question about noise. 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: No, Mr. Rehman is asking 

the question. 
THE BOARD SECRETARY: He's going to 

answer. 

MR. RJTVO: Finishing the answer aboul 

noise. What kind of noise is it? 

MR. CAMPEAS: Kids playing, kids 

screaming, from before 9:00 on-- you can hear 

it. I've got windows that are supposedly-

MR. REHMAN: When you say "kids 

screaming," is this kids yelling loud to be 

destructive or just speaking loudly? 

I'm trying to understand if it's unusual 

noise? 
MR. CAMPEAS: It's kids playing in the 

area around the synagogue fi·om before 9:00 on. 

Kids screaming each other's names, kids 

yelling, kids playing. Kids that would be 

disruptive if they were in the synagogue are 

sent outside the synagogue. And that's what we 

live with. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: Mr. Campeas, where is 
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There was nothing there that would say that I 

would have 20 or 30 kids playing outside my 

window every Saturday morning. 

MR. MULLIGAN: I think there's 

something-- Mr. Ritvo, with noise ordinances, 

those are governed by the town municipal code, 

aren't they? 

MR. RJTVO: Correct. 
MR. MULLIGAN: And! believe there's a 

starting time 7:00 in the morning. And that's 

something that has to be addressed. We can'! 

regulate that if it's legal. People can have 

many things going on at 7:00 in morning. 

There's nothing we can do abou\ il. 

MR. CAM PEAS: There's nolhing you can do 

about it bul when you say that it's-- they 

have good relationships and it's not 

disruptive--
MR. MULLIGAN: !understand. 13ul we can't 

Ioree them to do something thai they're 

legally-- not to do somelhing that they're 

legally allowed to do. 

MR. CAMPEAS: Okay. 
MR. MULLIGAN: And the same lhing with the 

parking. ll'lhosc an; legal parking spaces. we 
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understand and we try and work with everybody. I 

but we can't tell people that they can't park 2 

there. 3 
MS. JONES: Is the code 8:00 on the 4 

weekends') l think on \Vcekdays it's 7:00, and 5 

on the weekends. it's 8:00; is that correct? 6 
MR. MELfi: I'm not sure. 7 

THE THE BOARD SECRETARY: We'r.: going to 8 

take a break afler this anyway and I can go 9 
down and get it. I 0 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Okay. Mr. Campeas, do II 

you have any other questions? 12 
THE WITNESS: Could I just make a point to 13 

this matter? 14 

MR. CAMPEAS: Sure. 15 
THE WITNESS: I just want to say like this 16 

is also one of the reasons that we're really 17 

trying to have youth groups so that we can try 18 
to pull people into the synagogue so as to try 19 
to mitigate the noise. And that's one of the 20 

reasons that we're here today. 21 
MR. CAMPEAS: Yes, but nobody thought of 22 

that for the previous how many years -- 23 
CHAIRMAN I-lODGES: All right. You know 24 

what? Like I said --okay, thank you. 25 
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MR. MUSTAFA: The corner house that's I 

right behind the synagogue. 2 
THE WITNESS: On Griggs? 3 
MR. MUSTAFA: Well, it's on Queen Anne 4 

Road, but -- 5 
THE WITNESS: There is a member of the 6 

congregation. 7 

MR. MUSTAFA: So one ofthe issues that 8 
was-- I think for us was thut there was really 9 

no separation of backyards as to where the I 0 
children were playing and that was one of the II 

problems in terms orthe noise. 12 
CIIAII~MAN HODGES: Hold on one second. 13 

(Bric:fpm1se in the proceeding.) 14 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: What happened was our 15 

altorncy got sick. He's sick right now. So he 16 
has to leaw. So we're going to have to 17 

postpone this. We're going to adjourn the 18 

proceedings. 19 
llarold. hope you feel better. 20 

MR. RITVO: Thank you. 21 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: Because the attorney bus 22 

got to be here. Just so everybody knows what's 23 

going on. 24 
Unl(lrtunately our ultorney right now is 25 
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Any other questions? 
THE BOARD SECRETARY: We need <1 break tix 

the stenographer. 
CHAIRMAN I-lODGES : How many people want to 

osk questions'l Raise your hands. Two of you. 
We're going to take a break right now. 

Five minutes. 

(At 8:53 p.m. a recess vias taken.) 

(At 9:04 p.m. the rreeting resures.) 

CHAIRMAN HODGES: Please state your name. 
MR. MUSTAFA: AsifMustafa, A-S-1-F, 

M-U-S-T-A-F-A. 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: Only questions. 

MR. MUSTAFA: I've been involved with this 

for a while, so in the previous filing, J know 
that the previous individual that the house 

that was right behind the synagogue, the 

individual is not there anymore. 
But is the person who's residing in that 

house, is he a member of your synagogue 

currently? 
MR. CAPIZZI: Are you on Van Buren, sir? 

MR. MUSTAFA: I'm on Griggs. 
THE WITNESS: Are you talking about-

which house are you talking about? 
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fighting a serious illness and he's 

unfortunately sick and he can't proceed. And 
according to the land use laws, we cannot 
conduct a hearing unless we have our altorney 

here with us. 
So what we're going to have to do is that 

we have two other people that arc going to ask 

questions. What we're going to do is we're 

going to adjourn this to the next -- what's the 

next date? 
THE BOARD SECRETARY: Well , ifyou wanL 

our regular meeting elate is January 8. and we 
have about seven applications that have three 

attorneys. And January 22 is a special 

meeting. 
CHAIRMAN !lODGES: Mr. Cupizzi'l 

MR CAPIZZI: Can I trouble you li1r a 

second just so I can speak to my clients'? 

8th. 

CHAIRMAN HODCiloS: Sure, take your time. 

MR. MELFI: You can always carry to the 

MR. CAPIZZI: Let me speak to my clients. 

If we could have the special meeting on 

the 22ncl. 
TilE BOARD SECRETARY: You got it. 
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CHAIRMAN HODGES: What will happen is, so 

everybody knows, we're going to adjourn from 
now to the 22. Come back on the 22nd. 

We'll have Mr. Weinberg come back up. We 
have those couple little points you're just 

going to try to check out for us. By then all 

I 

2 
3 
4 

5 

6 

7 the neighbors will have the new ombudsman 7 

8 material. 8 

9 You know, if you have questions for the 9 
I 0 ombudsman, contact him before the meeting. You I 0 

II don't have to wait for the meeting to bring up II 

12 things here. You can contact him and you can 12 

13 have a dialogue. 13 
14 Is that okay with you? 14 

15 MR. CAPIZZI: Sure. 15 

16 MR. ROSEN: Transcript? 16 
17 THE BOARD SECRETARY: Yes. You're going 17 

18 to have transcripts, Mr. Capizzi? 18 
19 MR. CAPIZZI: Yes, we'll have it prepared 19 

20 in advance. 20 

21 CHAIRMAN HODGES: Okay. So we're going to 21 

22 adjourn until the 22nd of January. 22 

23 Could I have a motion on that? 23 

24 MR. MULLIGAN: Motion to adjourn. 24 
25 MR. ROSEN: Second. 25 
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MR. CAPIZZI: Without further notice. 

right? 
CHAIRMAN HODGES: Without further notice 

to the public, in these chambers. 

MR. CAPIZZI: Thank you. 
(Time noted: 9:09p.m.) 


